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AUDITED STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE GROUP COMPANY FOR THE LAST THREE
FINANCIAL YEARS AND STUB PERIOD

(% in million except per share data)

Equity Capital 26.00 26.00 26.00 26.00 26.00 26.00 26.00 26.00
Reserves -20.46 -275.78 8.12 -61.16 -26.18 -17.56 1.20 1.22
(Excluding

Revaluation

Reserve)

Sales 35.10 611.56 101.92 512.58 - - 8.40
Profit/(Loss) -28.57 -251.62 34.30 -31.12 -2498 |- 18.83 -24.95 1.20
after Tax

Earnings per -1.1 -8.26 1.32 -0.16 -0.96 -0.07 -0.95 - 0.05

Share (Basic)
(Face Value of
1)

Earnings per -1.1 -8.26 1.32 -0.16 -0.96 -0.07 -0.096 -0.05
Share (Diluted)
(Face Value of
1)

Net Asset Value 0.21 -5.58 1.31 8.93 -0.01 0.32 0.95 1.05




Trentar Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

I. |ASSETS Note As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 |Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4a 308.15 0.52
(b) Right-of-use assets 4b 7.82 -
(c) Other Intangible assets 4c 22,042.01 4.50
(d) Goodwill 48 7,281.12 -
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investment 5 1,003.85 321.85
(ii) Loans and Advances 6 5,300.67 1,606.15
(iii) Others Financial Assets 7 77.10 -
(f) Income Tax Assets (net) 8 192.98 13.31
(g) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 21 281.22 2291
36,494.92 1,969.25
2 [Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 1,001.46 -
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investment 5 0.10 -
(ii) Trade receivables 11 4,603.11 0.13
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 665.13 0.46
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 13 1,643.42 -
(v) Loans & Advances 6 - 1,087.59
(vi) Others Financial Assets 7 663.59 -
(c) Current tax assets -
(c) Other current assets 9 134.33 -
8,711.14 1,088.18
Total Assets 45,206.06 3,057.43
II. |[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 14 260.00 260.00
(b) Other Equity 15 (611.63) (175.60)
(c) Non- Controlling Interests 2,672.88 -
Total Equity 2,321.25 84.40
LIABILITIES
1 (Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 32,828.57 2,955.66
(b) Provisions 20 93.38 -
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 21 5,567.13 -
38,489.08 2,955.66
2 |Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 1,155.83 -
(ii) Lease Liabilities 18 8.91 -
(iii) Trade Payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 23 190.85 -
enterprises; and
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 23 1,325.52 2.00
enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 19 1,704.55 15.36
(b) Other current liabilities 22 2.67
(c) Provisions 20 7.40 -
4,395.73 17.36
Total Liabilities 42,884.81 2,973.02
[Total Equity and Liabilities 45,206.06 | 3,057.42 |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our Report of even date.

For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP
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Trentar Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Sr. no. Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I |Income
Revenue from operations 24 5,125.83 -
Other income 25 358.87 133.46
Impairment gain on financial assets 26 1.67 -
Total Income (I) 5,486.37 133.46
II |Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 27 476.15 -
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 28 519.29 -
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work in-progress 29 15.72 -
Employee benefits expense 30 943.22 0.03
Finance costs 31 1,260.60 181.90
Depreciation and amortization expenses 32 604.67 1.62
Other expenses 33 1,951.56 216.89
Total expenses (1) 5,771.22 400.44
III |(Loss) before tax and Exceptional Items (I-II) (284.85) (266.98)
IV |Exceptional Items 49 293.44 -
V  |(Loss) before tax (III-IV) (578.29) (266.98)
VI [Tax expense: 21
(1) Current tax 116.86 -
(2) Deferred tax (248.00) (17.46)
(3) Short / (excess) provision for tax for earlier year (6.70) -
Total tax expense (VI) (137.84) (17.46)
VII |(Loss) after tax before share of profit/(loss) of associate (V-VI) (440.45) (249.52)
VIII |Share of (Loss) / Profit of Associate 46 129.20 61.25
IX [(Loss) for the period (VII+VIII) (311.25) (188.27)
X |Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profits or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans; (17.45) -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 3.95 -
(13.49) -
XI [Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X) (Comprising Profit/(Loss) (324.75) (188.27)
and Other comprehensive Income for the period)
XII [Profit/ (Loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company (423.80) (188.27)
Non- Controlling Interests 112.55 -
XIII [Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company (12.79) -
Non- Controlling Interests (0.70) -
XIV |Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company (436.59) (188.27)
Non- Controlling Interests 111.84 -
XV  [Earnings per equity share
Basic and Diluted (in rupees) 34 (1.63) (0.72)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration: 103592W/W100028
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Director
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Trentar Private Limited
Consolidated statement of Cashflow for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax for the period (284.85) (266.98)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 604.67 1.62
(Gain)/Loss on sale of Property Plant and Equipment 19.59 -
Acquisition related expenses 40.79 -
Interest on borrowings 1,239.77 181.90
Impairment of goodwill (293.44) -
Interest Income (350.96) (133.46)
Impairment loss/ (gain) on trade receivables arising from (1.67) -
contracts with customer
Gain on Fair Valuation of Mutual Funds (1.08) -
Bad Debt / Advances written off 218.08 -
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 1,190.91 (216.92)
Movements in working capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (4,819.40) 98.99
Decrease in current and non-current financial assets (729.69) (446.27)
Decrease/ (Increase) in other current and non-current assets (134.33) -
Increase in inventories (1,001.46) -
(Decrease)/ Increase in Trade payables 1,514.37 (1.30)
Increase in current and non-current liabilities and provisions 1,686.39 1.52
Cash generated from operations (2,293.21) (563.97)
Income taxes paid (net) 5,251.24 (12.34)
Net cash used in operating activities 2,958.03 (576.31)
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, capital work in (22,996.94) -
progress and intangible assets
Investment into Subsidiaries / Associates (7,605.76) (3.64)
Investment into Certificates of Deposit (97.50) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 39.32 -
Acquisition of Non-controlling interest (net) 2,122.20 -
Acquisition related expenses (40.79) -
Maturity/ (Investment) of Fixed Deposits (net) (1,676.00) -
Interest income on Deposits 27.80
Interest income on Loans 323.16 -
Net cash generated / (used in) generated from investing activities (29,904.50) (3.64)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Additions in Borrowings 38,118.16 2,037.43
Repayment of Borrowings (7,089.43) -
Increase / (Decrease) in Loans (net) (2,606.93) (1,472.70)
Interest paid on Borrowings (1,238.37) -
Repayment of lease liabilities (10.29) -
Interest paid on lease liabilities (1.40) -
Purchase of stake from non-controlling interest 0.49 -
Sale of stake to non-controlling interest 438.90 -
Net cash generated from financing activities 27,611.14 564.74
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 664.67 (15.21)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 0.46 15.67
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 665.13 0.46

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Statement of Cashflow referred to in our report of even date.

For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration: 103592W/W100028
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Trentar Private Limited
Consolidated statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

Partculars Amount
As at April 01, 2022 260.00
Shares issued during the period -
As at March 31, 2023 260.00
Shares issued during the period -
As at March 31, 2024 260.00
B. Other Equity
Attributable to the owners
Reserves and Surplus .
Partculars lz)ther Total Other Nonlft[;::;’:lmg Total
Retained Earnings| Comprehensive Equity
Income
As at April 01, 2022 1217 - 1217 - 1217
(Loss) for the period (188.27) - (188.27) - (188.27)
Other adjustment 0.50 - 0.50 - 0.50
As at March 31, 2023 (175.60) - (175.60) - (175.60)
Profit/ (Loss) for the period (423.80) - (423.80) 112.55 (311.25)
Other Comprehensive Income - (12.79) (12.79) (0.70) (13.49)
Addition during the year 0.00 0.00 2,122.55 2,122.55
Change in stake of NCI 0.56 0.56 438.49 439.04
As at March 31, 2024 (598.84) (12.79) (611.63) 2,672.88 2,061.25

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration: 103592W/W100028

Trentar Private Limited
CIN: U40100MH2021PTC360196

Hasmu kh Digitally signed
. by Hasmukh
NanJ| Nanji Shah L/(,(,\,\_
Date: 2024.09.11 «
Shah 23:11:11 +05'30'
—
Hasmukh N. Shah SudhirMenon
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 11th Sept 2024
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Date: 11th Sept 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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7.
Stibodh Menon

Director
DIN: 00972842

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11th Sept 2024



Trentar Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1 Company's Overview:
Trentar Private Limited (the Company) was established in 2021 to carry on in india and abroad the business of manufacturing, processing, refining,
formulation, treating, storing, transpotation, making, marketing, importing, exporting, buying, selling, trading, distributing or otherwise dealing in all type of
fuel cells including hydrogen fuel cells and alternative energy related components , Manufacturing and selling of Drone , Services of Al, survilliance work ,
Mapping work.

2 Basis of preparation and measurement and summary of significant accounting policies

21

22

23

Basis for preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Trentar Private Limited; its subsidiaries and its associates (the group) have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, further amended by Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2016; and the other relevant provisions of the
Act and Rules thereunder.

The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention basis, except for certain assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

Items included in financial statement of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operated
(the functional currency).

Indian Rupee (Rs.) is the functional currency of the Group.

The financial statements are presented in India Rupee (Rs.) which is Group's presentation currency. All financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees has been rounded up to the nearest Lakhs except otherwise indicated.

Use of Judgement and Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and the acGrouping disclosures along with contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require material adjustments to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The
Group continually evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available information.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements are as below:

(i) Estimates of Useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets;
(ii) Provisions;

(iii) Contingencies and;

(iv) Evaluation of Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets;

(v) Impairment of Trade Receivables

(vi) Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity)

(vii) Leases and

(viii) Impairment of Goodwill.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Principles of Consolidation

(@) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities,
equity, incomes, expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions.

(b) Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as Inventory and Property, Plant and Equipment, are
eliminated in full.

(c) The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances.

(d) The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary is offset (eliminated) against the parent’s portion of equity in each subsidiary.

(e) The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and the carrying amount of its assets less liabilities as on the date of
disposal is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss being the profit or loss on disposal of investment in subsidiary.
(f) Investment in Associates has been accounted under the Equity Method as per Ind AS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

(g) The Group accounts for its share of post-acquisition changes in net assets of associates and joint ventures, after eliminating unrealised profits and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures.

(h) Non-Controlling Interest’s share of profit/loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the income of the Group in
order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the Company.

(i) Non-Controlling Interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.



Trentar Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.4 Basis of Consolidation

i) Consolidation of subsidiaries

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the parent company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of contro listed above.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

ii) Associates and Joint Ventures

An Associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. A Joint Venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

An investment in an Associate or a Joint Venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an Associate
or a Joint Venture. Under the equity method, an investment in an Associate or a Joint Venture is initially recognised in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income of the Associate or Joint
Venture.

The carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss (the loss being restricted to the cost of
investment) of the investee after the acquisition date. The difference between the cost of investments in the associate and the share of net assets at the
time of acquisition of shares in the associate is identified in the consolidated financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve.

Distributions received from an Associate or a Joint Venture reduce the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses of an
Associate or a Joint Venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that Associate or Joint Venture the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in these

entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

ii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

2.5 Statement of Compliance
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprising of Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, Consolidated Statement of changes in Equity together with significant accounting policies and notes for the year
ended March, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

2.6 Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment

(b)

PPE are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on Straight Line Method (SLM) except in case of assets
of IT services segment which are depreciated using Written Down Value (WDV) method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets
as given below:

Asset category M: 's estimate of useful life
Computer 3 - 6 years

Building 60 years

Plant & Machinery 15 - 25 years

Vehicles 6 -10 years

Furniture and 10 Years

Office equipments 5 years

Impairment of Non Financial Assets

Non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.



Trentar Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(d) Cash and Cash equivalents

i

it

)

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet include cash at bank, cash, cheque, draft on hand and demand deposits with an original maturity of
less than three months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and cash
equivalents include cash at bank, cash, cheque and draft on hand. The Group considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the
date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial instruments are recognised on the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial instruments are initially recognised at its fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
instruments are recognised in determining the carrying amount, if it is not classified as at fair value through profit or loss. However, trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs of financial instruments carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

Subsequently, financial instruments are measured according to the category in which they are classified.

Classification and subsequent measurement

1. Financial assets

Classification of financial assets is based on the business model in which the instruments are held as well as the characteristics of their contractual
cash flows. The business model is based on management’s intentions and past pattern of transactions. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest. The Group reclassifies financial
assets when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Financial assets are classified into follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost: Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold such assets in order to collect
such contractual cash flows are classified in this category. Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
any impairment losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in profit and loss.

2. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities: These are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Determination of fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price (fair value of the consideration given or received).

In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group determines the fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets using the quoted bid
prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask prices (financial liabilities held) and using valuation techniques for other instruments. Valuation
techniques include discounted cash flow method and other valuation methods.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. When a financial instrument is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is
transferred to the statement of profit and loss unless it was an equity instrument electively held at fair value through other comprehensive income. In
this case, any cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to retained earnings. Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Group reviews the facts and circumstances around each asset before making a determination. Financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. The Group also derecognises a
financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.



Trentar Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

v)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the following:

i) Trade receivables

ii) Financial assets measured at the amortised cost (other than trade receivables).

In case of trade receivables, the Group follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss
allowance

Financial assets classified as amortised cost (listed as ii above), subsequent to initial recognition, are assessed for evidence of impairment at end of
each reporting period basis monitoring of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding looking information.

If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL allowance recognised (or reversed) during the period is recognised as expense (or income) in the statement of profit and loss under the head
‘Other expenses’.

Write - off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Sale of Products

Revenue is recognised using the following five step model specified in Ind AS 115

Step 1: Identify contracts with customers

Step 2: Identify performance obligations contained in the contracts

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

Step 5: Recognize revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied The performance obligations arising from sale of products with group’s
customers are satisfied at a point in time

Sales of products and services are recognised on satisfaction of performance obligation based on the agreed terms which coincides with the transfer
of control of the goods. Control of the goods is transferred when the customer has the ability to direct the use of the asset and obtain substantially all
of the remaining benefits from the goods.

Sales are net of returns, trade discounts, rebates, sales tax and goods and service tax (GST), as applicable.
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Sale of Services

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. The Group assesses promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price as specified in the contract with the customer. It excludes taxes or other amounts collected from
customers in its capacity as an agent. In determining the transaction price, the Group considers below:

- Variable consideration - This includes bonus, incentives, discounts etc. It is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at end of each reporting period.

- Significant financing component - Generally, the Group receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS
115, the Group does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract
inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service
will be one year or less.

- Consideration payable to a customer - Such amounts are accounted as reduction of transaction price and therefore, of revenue unless the payment
to the customer is in exchange for a distinct good or service that the customer transfers to the Group.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price. The
accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing
is at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct
are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of
existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Interest
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income
is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Income Taxes
(i) Current Tax

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the Statement of Profit and Loss, other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

(ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences including the temporary differences arising from Business Combination.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference
dividends, if any, and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares
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Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of reimbursements, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

(ii) Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of the Group, or
present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of economic resources is
considered remote.

Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current:

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle (determined at 12 months) and other
criteria set out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The cost of acquisition is the aggregate of the consideration
transferred measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Acquisition costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they are incurred. At the acquisition date, identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are measured at fair value.

Goodwill is measured as excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the net of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed is in excess of the aggregate
mentioned above, the resulting gain on bargain purchase is recognised.

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not individually identified and separately recognised.
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting in a contingent consideration
arrangement, such contingent consideration, on the acquisition date, is measured at fair value and included as a part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments, are adjusted
retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill or capital reserve as the case may be.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in Other Comprehensive Income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be
appropriate if that interest were disposed off.

Deferred Tax Liability by adjusting Goodwill is created in the books on the identified intangibles based on purchase price allocation with definite
useful life. Subsequently, deferred tax benefit on the depreciation of such identified intangibles with definite useful life are adjusted against the
deferred tax liability created in year 1 of acquisition.

The interest of non-controlling shareholders is initially measured either at fair value or at the NCI’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement is specific to each acquisition.

(m) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of its relative stand alone prices.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful
life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of the
lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. The Group's Incremental
borrowing rate is the rate of interest that lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with the similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain as asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic enviroment.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following;:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not
to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. The Group
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employees services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These
benefits include salaries, wages and bonus. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee service is
recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

Post employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has no
obligation to pay any further amount. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to Government
administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Group's contribution is recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plan

The Group's funded gratuity benefit scheme is defined plans. The Group's net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs is deducted. The calculation of the Group's obligation under each
plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The Group recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately in the statement of profit and loss. All expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. When the benefits of a plan are
improved, the portion of the increased benefit related to past service by employees is recognised in profit or loss on a straight - line basis over the
average period until the benefit become vested. The Group recognises gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the curtailment or settlement occurs. Any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience
adjustments within the plan, are recognised immediately in ‘Other comprehensive income’” and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related
services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance
sheet date. Group’s liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are determined on the basis of valuations, as at balance sheet date,
carried out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the
effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials, components and consumables are ascertained on a FIFO
basis. Cost, including fixed and variable production overheads, are allocated to work-in-progress and finished goods determined on a full
absorption cost basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and
selling expenses.

Intangible Asset

Intangible assets other than Goodwill are carried at cost net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Expenditure on
internally generated intangibles, excluding development costs, are not capitalised and is reflected in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which the expenditure is incurred. Development costs are capitalised if, and only if, technical and commercial feasibility of the project is
demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable, The Group has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell the asset and the costs can
be measured reliably.

i) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the cost of the acquired business in excess of the fair value of identifiable tangible and intangible net assets purchased. Goodwill
is not amortized; however, it is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The gains/(losses) on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of Goodwill relating to the entity disposed.

The impairment losses on intangible assets with indefinite life is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii) Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported
at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Category of asset Estimate of useful life
Brand Identity 20 years

Intellectual Property 10 years

Distributor Relationship 19 years
Non-Compete Agreement 5 years

Computer Software 6 years

3 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Group.
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5 Investments

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-Current
At fair value through profit or loss
Certificate of Deposits of Aditya Birla Mutual Funds 98.57 -
At cost
Investment in associates
2,600 (Mar 31, 2023: 2,600) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of 905.28 321.85
GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Private Limited
1,003.85 321.85
Current
At fair value through profit or loss
Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)
Aditya Birla Sunlife Low Duration Fund 0.10 -
0.10 -
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investment - -
Aggregate Market value of Quoted Investment - -
Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investment 1,003.95 321.85
Aggregate Amount of Impairment in the amount ofInvestment - -
1,003.95 321.85

Note : Out of total loss share of Rs 238.63 lakhs of Rfly Innovations Private Limited (associate), the whole of the
amount is unrecognised for the FY 2023-24. Therefore, unrecognised balance as on 31/03/2024 is Rs 376.35 lakhs
(31/03/2023 : Rs 137.72 lakhs) [Refer note 46 Investment in Associates for more details]
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6 Loans
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Loans to related parties 5,300.67 1,606.15
5,300.67 1,606.15
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Loans to related parties - 907.59
Loans to others - 180.00
- 1,087.59
7 Other Financial Assets
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Security Deposit 8.64 -
Earmarked deposits with banks 7.00 -
Fixed deposit with original maturity of more than 12 months* 32.58 -
Gratuity Fund (refer note 37) 28.88 -
77.10 -

* The above Fixed Deposit has been pledged as margin money with bank against Bank Guarantee and Other Non-fur

Current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Investment Hold Back Receivables*® 509.47 -
Security Deposit 21.94 -
Earmarked deposits with banks 132.18 -
663.59 -

*This investment hold back receivable is pursuant to acquisition of SSL and for detail refer note 45.
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8 Non-current Tax Assets (net)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Advance tax (net of provision for income tax) 192.98 13.31

192.98 13.31

9 Other Assets

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advances for supplies/ services 29.06 -
Balance with government authorities 7211 -
Prepaid expenses 2.40 -
Other Receivable 30.76 -
134.33 -
10 Inventories
As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Raw materials 189.01 -
Packing Material & Other Promotional Products 113.08 -
Work-in-progress 2.23 -
Finished goods 444 40 -
Traded Goods 252.74 -

1,001.46 -
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Trentar Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

12 Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash on hand 1.33 0.05
Balances with banks
In Current account 188.74 0.41
In Deposit account - Original maturity of 3 months or less 475.06 -
665.13 0.46
13 Balance with banks other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
In Deposit accounts 1,643.42 -

With remaining maturity more than 3 months but less than 12
months

1,643.42




%09°T¥ 6¥7'ST'80T %09°T¥ 67F'ST'80T UOUSN ypoqng
%07 €€ 16578798 %07 €€ 16578798 UOUSAl IYypng
%00°ST 000°00¢9 %00°ST 000°00°69 "P¥T 1Ad eIpu] [edruayd Te3d] J1oq
dn pwd Rynf yova 15y Jo saivys Apnbg
afejuadrad Surpjoyg  sareyg jooN  afejusdrad Suipjoy  sareys jo oN
€20T ‘1€ YoTeA ¥20T ‘1€ YoTeA
Je sy je sy

Auwedwo)) 3y} ur sareys o/,g Uey} 10Ul SUTP[OY SIdPJOYaIeys Jo s[reldq (2

‘p1oY saxeys Aymba jo roquinu

ay 03 uonrodord ur spunowre eguareyard [re jo uonnqrysip e Jururewsr ‘Auedurod ay) Jo S)OSSE [ENPISAI S} SAIIDI 0} PIPUUL 3q [Im sareys Aymbs jo sxaproy ayy ‘“Auedwod ayy jo dn Gurpurm uQ

‘pred usaq jou saey ajqeded Apussaid swns 1930 10 [[ed AUe YOIYM UO Sa1eys JO 302dSa1 U pasIdIaxa aq jouued spySu Sunop
‘Auedwo)) aip jo teydes £ymbs dn-pred ayy jo areys syt 03 uonzodord ur are (spuey jo moys uo jou) fjod e uo sxepjoyareys Aymba ue jo spydir Junoa Sy, "W 0} SWI} WOIJ PIIL[IIP SE PUIPIAIP AT
0} papuL are sdproyareys Ajnba oy ‘syesse [enprsar s, Aueduion) ay3 ur areys pue puaprarp o3 predar ypm Aenbs yuer soreys Ambe [re ‘A[Surpiodoy “sareys Apmba jo ssep afdurs e sey Auedwoy ayy,

sareys Aymba 03 payoepe syySur Swdy (q

00°000°9C 000°00°09°C 00°000°9C 000°00°09°C Ted4 3y3 Jo pua dy3 je surpuesinO
- - - - TedA Ay Sunmp pansst sareyg
000009 00070009 000009 0000009 1eak ayy jo Juruurdaq ayy 1y
saivys Apnbg
junouwry Sareyg Jo oN junouwry Sareys Jo oN
€202 ‘TE Y2TeN $202 ‘1€ Yd1eN
Je sy je sy
1ead Surprodar ayj Jo pus pue Suruurdaq ayj je SUTPUEISINO SATEYS A} JO UOLI[IDU0IY (e

00°09C 00°092 reanded axeys dn-pred A[[ny pue paqusqns ‘panssi [ejo,
pred &ny yoes T 2 jo sareys Aymba 0000009
00°09¢ 00°09¢ sareys fymby
sareys dn-pred A[[ny pue paqusqns ‘panssy

00°004 00°004
yoea [ 2 Jo sareys Aymba 000'00°00Z
00004 00°004 sareys Aymby
S3IeYS PISLIOYINY

€20T ‘TE Y2TeN $202 ‘1€ Y21eN
jesy jesy

rende) areyg Lymby 31

(pa1e)s ASTMIBYIO sSafuN ‘sypyer] saadny] ur spjunowe [1y)
$20T “IE YDTBJAl PAPUD IedA 31} 10J SPUDWId}L}S [EDUBUL] PIJePI[OSU0)) 03 SIION
PaIWIT AJRALL] TeJUSLL,



%000 %00°00T 000°00°09°C - 000°00°09°'C TejoL
%00°0 %09°1¥ 6V9'ST'80'T - 67F'ST'80'T UOUBIAL ypOqng
%00°0 %0¥"¢ce 16S'78°98 - 16S'78°98 UOUBIA ITYpng
%00°0 %00°GC 000°00€9 - 000°00€9 "PYT 1Ad erpu] [edruayd [e3d] J1oq
TAjoT0I]
dn pred Anj yoes g°sy jo sareys Aymbyg
reaf apy 1eaf jJo pud 1eak reaf o Suruurdaq
Sd1RYS [£}0) JO 0/, Jweu 13)0WoL]
Surmp aGuey) o, ay3 je sareys jo *oN | 33 Surmp 38uey) |avy) 3e sareys jo "oN
€20T ‘I€ YoIe 18 SV
%000 %00°00T 000°00°09°C - 000°00°09°C TejoL
%00°0 %09°1¥ 6V9'ST'80'T - 67F'ST'80'T UOUBIAL ypOqng
%00°0 %0¥"ce 16S'78°98 - 16S'78°98 UOUBIA ITYpng
%00°0 %00°GC 000°00€9 - 000°00€9 "PYT 1Ad erpuf [edruayd [e3d’] J1oq
T7J0UWI0L]
dn pred Anj yoes o1°sy jo sareys Aymbyg
reaf apy 1eaf Jo pud 1eak reaf o Suruurdaq
Sd1RYS [£}0) JO 0/, Jweu 13)0WoL]
Surmp aGuey) v/, ay3 je sareys Jo *oN | 33 Surmp 38uey) |ay) 3e sareys jo "oN

$20T “I€ UIEA Je SV
sjouwroxd Aq pray sareys jo sirernq (p
rende) areyg Lymby 31
(P31e)S ASIMIDO SSATUN “sypjer] saadmy ur spunowe [y)

$20T “IE YDILIA PIPUD Ted4 31} 10§ SJUIUII}E)S [EIDURUL] PIIEPI[OSUO)) 0} SIJON
PO 3JeALIJ TeJUDIL



Trentar Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

15 Other Equity

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance (175.60) 1217
Profit for the year (attributable to owner) (423.80) (188.27)
Adjustment on account of acquisition of subsidiaries 0.00 -
Impact of change in controlling stake* 0.56 -
Closing Balance (598.84) (175.60)
Movement in other comprehensive income
Opening Balance - -
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (12.79) -
Closing Balance (12.79) -
Retained Earnings (598.84)
Movement in other comprehensive income (12.79)
Total Other Equity (611.63) (175.60)

*During the year ended March 31, 2024, Minority Share holders of Stesalit Systems Limited has increased their stake.
Accordingly such transactions are recognised as Change in Controlling interest.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends

or other distributions paid to shareholders.

(ii) Other Comprehensive Income

Re-measurement (comprising actuarial gains and lossses, return on plan assets,etc.) of defined benefit plans in
respect of post employment are charged to Other Comprehensive Income. Re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in Movement in Other Comprehensive Income and will not be

reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

16 Non-controlling Interest

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-controlling Interest on acquistions 2,122.55 -
Add: Change in stake of NCI 438.49 -

Add: Profit / (loss) attributable to Non-controlling Interest 112.55 -

Add: Other Comprehensive Income attributable to Non-controlling Interest (0.70) -
2,672.9 -




Trentar Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

17 Borrowings

18

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non-current
Secured loans

Term Loan 23.33 -
Vehicle Loan 37.08 -
From Aditya Birla Finance Limited 3,929.81 -

Unsecured loans

From Directors 76.66 70.19
From Related Parties 28,761.69 2,885.47
32,828.57 2,955.66
Current
Secured loans
Current Maturities of Term Loan 19.33 -
Current Maturities of Vehicle Loan 14.39 -
Cash credit from banks 197.11 -

Unsecured loans
From Directors - -

From Related Parties (0.00) -

From Financial Institutions 925.00 -
Total borrowings 1,155.83 -
Note:

Secured Loans
(i) Vehicle Loan: Repayment in 60 monthly instalments; interest @ 9.15% & 10.76% secured by hypothecation of vehicle financed there against of
Stesalit Systems Limited
(ii) Term Loan: Repayment in 36 monthly installments; interest @ 9.9%; secured by extension of charge over the existing Primary & Collateral
securities including mortgages created in favour of the Bank as stated in point (iii) below.
(iii) Cash Credit & Term Loans facilities from AU Small Bank are secured by:

- first charge on entire present and future assets of the Stesalit Systems Limited.

- guarantee of Mr. Hemant Khemka a director of the Stesalit Systems Limited.

- Equitable mortgage of Stesalit Systems Limited of Industrial Premises at Kolkata owned by, M/s Maruna Exports Pvt. Ltd. earst while
shareholder of Stesalit Systems Limited.
(iv) Loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited- The principal amount of loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited is repayable within 4 years in 7
structured installments & interest is payable monthly at the interest rate of 10% p.a. till the repayment of principal amount. The charge for this
loan is created on movable property and book debts of the Trentar Private Limited.
Unsecured Loans
(i) The loan from related party is free from any charge and repayable within 5 years from date of disbursement and interest is payable @ 10% p.a &
11% p.a.

Lease Liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non-Current
Lease Liabilities - -

Current
Lease Liabilities 8.91 -

8.91 -




Trentar Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19 Otbher financial liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Investment Hold Back Payable* 129.59 -
Security deposits from customers 68.64 -
Tender Deposit 76.00 -
Employee Benefits Payable 252.29
Other Payables 576.02 0.20
Statutory dues (includes Provident Fund, Porfessional Tax, Tax deducted at 602.00 15.16
Source, Goods and Services Tax, etc.)
1,704.55 15.36
*This investment hold back payable is pursuant to acquisition of TPPL and for detail refer note 45.
20 Provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Current
Non-Current
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 37)
Retirement benefits obligations
Gratuity 71.92 -
Other long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences 21.47 -
93.38 -

Current
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 37)
Retirement benefits obligations
Gratuity
Other long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences

4.55

2.85

7.40




Trentar Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

21 Income tax

a) Tax expenses

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended:

Statement of profit and loss:
Profit or loss section

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 116.86 -
Short / (excess) provision for tax for earlier year (6.70) -
110.16 -
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (248.00) (17.46)
(248.00) (17.46)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss (137.84) (17.46)
OCI section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 3.95 -
Income tax charge to OCI 3.95 -
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Accounting profit before income tax net total income (284.86) (266.98)
Tax on accounting profit at statutory income tax rate - -
[March 31, 2024: 25.17%,26.82%
March 31, 2023: 25.17 %]
Income Exempt from Tax/Items not deductible 17.84 (17.46)
Effect of reversal of unabsorbed losses on which DTA is recognised 2.19 -
Effect of unabsorbed losses on which DTA is recognised (138.69) -
Taxable at different rate (12.47) -
Short / (excess) provision for tax for earlier year (6.70) -
Deferred tax on other adjustments
At the effective income tax rate (137.84) (17.46)
[March 31, 2024: 25.17%,26.82%
March 31, 2023: 25.17%,26.82%]
Tax expense reported in the Statement of profit or loss (137.84) (17.46)




Trentar Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

<)

b) Deferred tax Assets

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between carrying amounts of PPE in financial statement and the income 12.23 0.25
tax return
Gross deferred tax liabilities 12.23 0.25
Deferred tax assets
On preliminary expenses 0.82 1.61
On account of remeasurements of defined benefit plans 24.08
On unabsorbed losses 264.55 21.55
On provision for expenses 4.00
Gross deferred tax assets 293.45 23.16
Net deferred tax assets 281.22 22.91
Deferred tax Liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between carrying amounts of PPE and intangible assets in financial 5,562.93 -
statement and the income tax return
On account of remeasurements of defined benefit plans 5.98 -
Gross deferred tax liabilities 5,568.91 -
Deferred tax assets
On account of difference between carrying amount of trade receivables in
Financial statement and the income tax return 1.51
On account of right- of- use asset 0.28
Gross deferred tax assets 1.78 -
Net deferred tax liabilities 5,567.13 -
22 Other liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Advances received from customers 2.67 -

2.67




Trentar Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

23 Trade payables

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Creditors for supplies and services

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 190.85 -

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and

small enterprises 1,325.52 2.00
1,516.37 2.00

a) Ageing of trade payables as at March 31, 2024

Particulars Unbilled Not due Less than 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 Total
1 year years
Undisputed dues- MSME - - 175.61 15.22 - - 190.85
Undisputed dues - Others - - 960.73 79.44 164.28 121.07 1,325.52

Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -
- - 1,136.34 94.67 164.28 121.07 1,516.37

Ageing of trade payables as at March 31, 2023
Particulars Unbilled Not due Lels;::;m 1-2years 2-3years > 3 years Total

Undisputed dues- MSME - - - - - - -
Undisputed dues - Others - - 2.00 - - - 2.00
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -

The Group has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as

follows :
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
190.85 -
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 0.50 -

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during - -
the year

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year - -

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act




Trentar Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

24

25

26

Revenue from Operations
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Revenue from contracts with customer
Sale of Products 1,743.94 -
Sale of Services 3,381.89 -
5,125.83 -
B. Timing of revenue recognition
Products transferred at a point in time - -
Products transferred over time 1,743.94 -
Services delivered at a point in time - -
Services delivered over time 3,381.89 -
5,125.83 -
C. Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price
Revenue as per contracted price 5,125.83 -
Less: Contract liabilities - -
Less: Trade discounts, volume rebates, etc - -
5,125.83 -
Other Income
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gain on foreign exchange transactions & translations(Net) 0.67 -
Interest income on Loans 323.16 133.46
Interest on Income Tax Refund 5.73 -
Interest income on deposits 27.80 -
Gain on Fair Valuation of Mutual Funds 1.08 -
Miscellaneous income 0.44 -
358.88 133.46
Impairment gain on financial assets
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Impairment gain on trade receivables arising from contracts with customer 1.67 -

1.67




Trentar Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

27 Cost of material consumed

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventory of materials at the begining of the period 560.05 -
Add: Purchases of raw material during the year 152.54 -
Add: Input GST Disallowed 34.08 -
Add: Packing Materials 31.57 -
Less : Inventory of materials at the end of the period 302.09 -
476.15 -
28 Purchase of stock in trade
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purchases 519.29 -
519.29 -
29 Changes in inventories
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventories at the beginning of the period
Finished goods 469.67 -
Work-in-progress - -
Traded goods 24542 -
Less: Inventories at the closing of the period
Finished goods 444 .40 -
Work-in-progress 223 -
Traded goods 252.74 -
15.72 -
30 Employee benefit expenses
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries and wages, including bonus 898.47 -
Contribution to provident and other funds* 35.02 -
Staff Welfare Expenses 9.73 0.03
943.22 0.03

*Includes contribution to Provident fund, NPS, Gratuity & Pension funds (refer note 37).



Trentar Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 Finance Cost

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest
On borrowings from Financial Institutions 68.41 181.90
On borrowings from Bank 22.60 -
On borrowings from Related Parties 1,147.36 -
On lease liabilities 1.40 -
On security deposit 2.28 -
Interest on delayed payment of taxes 14.39 -
Loan Processing Fees 4.17 -
1,260.61 181.90
32 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 48.58 1.62
Amortisation on intangible assets 545.66 -
Depreciation on Right-of-use Assets 10.43 -
604.67 1.62




Trentar Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

33 Other expenses

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Auditors Remuneration 10.20 0.40
Business Promotion Exp 23.56 7.36
Freight 21.53 -
Printing & Stationery 11.48 0.32
Insurance 3.51 -
Loss on sale of assets 19.59 -
Sub-contracting charges 1,001.15 -
Utilities Expenses 12.30 -
Breakage & Expiries 15.04 -
CSA Expenses 19.20 -
Commission and Brokerage 25.83 -
Website Development Charges 10.88 -
Legal and professional fees 137.72 8.21
Membership and Subscription 8.41 -
Rates & Taxes 2791 0.03
Repair & Maintenance 24.93 -
Rent 33.39 0.60
Gurantee Commission 9.75 -
Stamp Duty 56.21 0.02
Bank charges 5.71 -
Travelling Charges 213.28 -
Communication Expenses 32.84 -
Bad debts and advances written off 218.08 199.95
Miscellaneous Expenses 9.07 -
1,951.57 216.89
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Audit fee 9.70 0.40
Tax audit fee 0.50 -
10.20 0.40




Trentar Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

34 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

There are no potential equity shares and hence the basic and diluted EPS are the same.

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, as under:

(a) Profit attributable to Equity holders of Company

Particulars

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic and

diluted earnings per share

(423.80) (188.27)

(b) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for basic and

diluted 2,60,00,000 2,60,00,000
b) Nominal value of ordinary shares (INR) 1.00 1.00
d) Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share (INR) (1.63) (0.72)

35 Contingent liabilities and commitments

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bank Guarantee issued to Customer 448.35 461.19
Disputed Income Tax demand 10.43 10.43
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37 Employee benefits
The disclosures required under Accounting Standard 15 (AS15) "Employee Benefits" notified in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006, based on acturial valuation made by a registered valuer, are given below:

(i) Defined Contribution Plans
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognized are charged off for the period (included in the Statement of Profit and Loss as under.)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

- Employer's contribution to Provident Fund
20.20 -

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan

~

Every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days of total gross salary last drawn for each completed year of service. Gratuity is
payable to all eligible employees of the Group on retirement or separation or death or permanent disablement in terms of the provisions of the
payment of Gratuity Act.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity
(Funded) (Unfunded) (Funded) (Unfunded)

Reconciliation in present value of obligation (PVO)
Defined benefit obligation:
Liability at the beginning of the year 92.37 66.73 - -
Interest Cost 6.09 4.83 - -
Current service cost 13.40 7.74 - -
Benefits paid (25.00) - - -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss - Demographic assumptions -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss - Financial assumptions 0.55 - - -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss - Experience 19.73 (2.83) - -
Liability at the end of the year 107.13 76.47 - -
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 139.13 - - -
Expected return on plan assets 10.16 - - -
Employer Contributions 13.03 - - -
Benefits paid (25.00) - - -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (1.31) - - -
Funded status 136.01 - - -
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss:
Current service cost 13.40 7.74 - -
Net Interest costs (4.07) 4.83 - -
Total Defined Benefit Cost recognized in Profit and
loss 9.33 12.57 - -
Included in Other Comprehensive Income
Amount recognized in OCI, Beginning of the period
Remeasurements due to:

Effect of change in financial assumptions 0.55 - - -

Effect of change in demographic assumptions - - - -

Effect of experience adjustments 19.73 (2.83) - -

Return on plan Assets(excluding interest) 1.31 - - -
Total Remeasurements recognized in OCI - - - -
Amount recognized in OCI, End of the period 21.59 (2.83) - -
Net liability recognized in the balance sheet
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 136.01 - - -
Liability at the year end (107.13) (76.47) - -

Amount recognized in the balance sheet 28.88 (76.47) - -




Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate

Expected salary increase rate
Attrition rate

Mortality rate

Retirement age

Experience adjustments
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of the plan assets

(Surplus)/ Deficit in the plan

Sensitivity Analysis

7.17%

6%

20%

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)
Ultimate

58 years

107.13
136.01
28.88

6.97%
8%
NA

100% of IALM 2012-

14
NA

(76.47)

76.47

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligation as shown below.

Increase in

Discount rate (1% movement)

Future salary growth (1% movement)
Decrease in

Discount rate (1% movement)

Future salary growth (1% movement)

103.03
111.58

111.60
102.95

70.05
83.94

83.90
69.90

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Expected future cash flows

The expected contributions for the defined benefit
plan for the next financial years are mentioned below:

Year 1
Year2to 5
Year 6-10
Above 10 years

Average Expected Future Working life (in years)

2243
61.67
41.24
25.19

4.91

4.55
32.01
35.40
94.16

10.00

The funded plan of Gratuity is funded through trust and it is managed by life insurance company.

Leave enchashment expenses

Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

38 Changes in liabilities from financing activities

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

6.17

Paticulars Cash Flow from Financing Activities

As at March 31, 2023 Addition * Repayment As at March 31, 2024
Non Current Borrowing (including Current Maturity
of Non Current Debt and Interest 2,955.66 33,929.71 (4,056.81) 32,828.57
Current Borrowings - 4,188.45 (3,032.62) 1,155.83
Total 2,955.66 38,118.16 (7,089.43) 33,984.40
Paticulars Cash Flow from Financing Activities

As at March 31, 2022 Addition Repayment As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Borrowing (including Current Maturity
of Non Current Debt and Interest 736.32 2,764.34 (545.00) 2,955.66
Current Borrowings - - - -
Total 736.32 2,764.34 (545.00) 2,955.66

* Additions include addition subsequent to acquisition of subsidiaries.
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39 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Certain accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which The Group has access at that date.

The fair value of investments, trade receivable, cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances, trade payables, short term borrowings and other current financial liabilities
approximate the carrying amounts because of the short term nature of these financial instruments.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired include cash and cash equivalents, security deposits, term deposits, and other financial assets.

Fair value hierarchy

The following is the hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
*Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

*Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices).

*Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
No financial assets/liabilities have been valued using level 1 fair value measurements.
The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

As on March 31, 2024
Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars Quoted Pricein  Significant Significant
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total active markets  observable  unobservable Total
(Level 1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)

Financial Assets Non Current
Investment 98.57 - 905.28 1,003.85 98.57 - - 98.57
Loans and Advances - - 5,300.67 5,300.67 - - - -
Others Financial Assets - - 77.10 77.10 - - - -
Financial Assets Current
Investment 0.10 - - 0.10 0.10 0.10
Trade receivables - - 4,603.11 4,603.11 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 665.13 665.13 - - - -
Bank balances other than above - - 1,643.42 1,643.42 - - - -
Loans & Advances - - - - - - - -
Other Financial Assets - - 663.59 663.59 - - - -

13,956.96 -
Financial Liabilities Non Current
Borrowings - - 32,828.57 32,828.57 -
Financial Liabilities Current
Trade payables - - 1,516.37 1,516.37 - - - -
Lease Liabilities - - 891 891 - - - -
Borrowings - - 1,155.83 1,155.83 - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities - - 1,704.55 1,704.55 - - - -

37,214.23
As on March 31, 2023

Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars Q?:fciizzce Significant Significant
FVTPL FVTOQI Amortised cost Total observable  unobservable Total
markets (Level . .
1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Financial Assets Non Current
Investment - - 321.85 321.85 - - - -
Loans and Advances - - 1,606.15 1,606.15 - - - -
Others Financial Assets - - - - - - - -
Financial Assets Current
Investment - - - - - -
Trade receivables - - 0.13 0.13 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 0.46 0.46 - - - -
Bank balances other than above - - - - - - - -
Loans & Advances - - 1,087.59 1,087.59 - - - -
Other Financial Assets - - - - - - - -
3,016.18 -

Financial Liabilities Non Current
Borrowings - - 2,955.66 2,955.66 -
Financial Liabilities Current
Trade payables - - 2.00 2.00 - - - -
Lease Liabilities - - - - - - - -
Borrowings - - - - - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities - - 15.36 15.36 - - - -

2,973.02




40 Risk management Framework

The Group is exposed to various financial risks. These risks are categorized into market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's risk management is coordinated by the
Board of Directors who focuses on securing long term and short term cash flows. The Group does not engage in trading of financial assets for speculative purposes.

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(A) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and
derivative financial instruments.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The group exposure to the
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the company long term and short term borrowing with floating interest rates. The group constantly monitors the
credit markets and rebalances its financing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity profile and financing cost.

The interest rate profile of the company interest bearing financial instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars
Fixed rate Instrument 33,693.16 2,955.66
Variable rate Instrument 291.24 -

33,984.40 2,955.66
Fixed rate instruments that are carried at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate risk for the purpose of sensitivity analysis.
As at March 31, 2024, 100 basis points (1%) increase/(decrease) in the interest rate at Indian currency borrowings would result in approximately Rs. 2.91 lakhs in the finance
cost of the Group (As at March 31,2023, Nil)

(ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency
from the Group’s functional currency.

The Group has not foreign currency denominated monetary assets. The Group is not exposed to this risk.

(B) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises principally
from the Group’s receivables from deposits with landlords and other statutory deposits with regulatory agencies and also arises from cash held with banks and financial
institutions. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in
financial assets. The Group assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The 'Trade Receivables' include slow-moving dues identified to the tune of INR 1,342 lakhs (Previous Year -NIL), major portion of which comprises of dues from Government
authorities/ Companies. The management has represented that due efforts for recovery are being made and are expecting satisfactory results, and that whenever any of these is
found to be doubtful/bad of recovery, due accounting effect shall be given. Accordingly, no provision thereto has been made in the books of accounts.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the financial assets as at March 31 2024, March 31 2023 is the carrying amounts as mentioned in Note 7.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence
the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and country in which customers operate. Details of concentration of revenue are
included in Note 24.

The Group allocates loss rate and provide 100% exposure which is due for more than three years are not good and unsecured. Exposure is not provided for receivables which
are secured by security deposits. Refer note 11 for credit risk and ECL's for trade receivables

(C) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and include contractual interest
payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying Value Within 1 year 1to 3years 3to5years Mo;ee:l::n 5 Total
As on March 31, 2024
Borrowings 33,984.40 1,155.83 32,828.57 - - 33,984.40
Trade payables 1,516.37 1,516.37 - - - 1,516.37
Lease Liabilities 891 9.27 - - - 9.27
Other financial liabilities 1,704.55 1,704.55 - - - 1,704.55
37,214.23 4,386.02 32,828.57 - - 37,214.58
As on March 31, 2023 Carrying Value Within 1 year 1to 3 years 3to 5 years Mo;:ian 5 Total
Borrowings 2,955.66 - 2,955.66 - - 2,955.66
Trade payables 2.00 2.00 - - - 2.00
Lease Liabilties - - - - - -
Other financial liabilities 15.36 15.36 - - - 15.36
2,973.02 17.36 2,955.66 - - 2,973.02
Financial Arrangements
The Group has access to following undrawn borrowings facilities at the end of the reporting period :
As on March 31, 2024 As on March 31, 2023
Cash Credit
Expiring within one year 60.23 -
Term Loan
Expiring beyond one year 1,070.19 -

1,130.42 -
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()

a)

b)

q)

(i)

(i)

Related party disclosures

Name of Related Party and the nature of Relationship

Associate Company

TM Aerospace Private Limited (upto April 16, 2023)

GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Private Limited

Rfly Innovations Private Limited

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Sudhir V. Menon
Mr. Subodh V. Menon

Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise significant influence.

Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Pvt. Ltd.

Transactions with Related Parties

Associate Company

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Enterprises over which
Key Managerial
Personnel are able to
exercise significant

March 31, 2023

Particulars influence.
S:;;id:r:';iﬁvs;‘: Rfly Innovations Mr. Sudhir V. Mr. Subodh V. Dorf Ketal Chemicals
P Private Limited Menon Menon India Pvt. Ltd.
Limited
Unsecured Loans Given
March 31, 2024 1,623.40 1,891.12 - - -
March 31, 2023 231.53 3.64 - - -
Unsecured Loans taken
March 31, 2024 - - 2.87 3.60 25,876.22
March 31, 2023 - - 31.10 39.09 2,885.47
Interest received
March 31, 2024 136.00 187.15 - - -
March 31, 2023 28.90 43.64 - - -
Sales/Service
March 31, 2024 600.00 319.24 - - -
March 31, 2023 - - - - -
Interest paid
March 31, 2024 - - 3.18 4.00 1,072.17
March 31, 2023 - - 3.59 2.85 175.27
Balance O ding of Related Parties
Enterprises over which
Key Managerial
Particulars Associate Company Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Personnel are able to
exercise significant
influence.
S(;;‘:f:rﬂ‘}rvl f:ti‘ Rfly Innovations | Mr. SudhirV.  Mr. Subodh V. | Dorf Ketal Chemicals
. Private Limited Menon Menon India Pvt. Ltd.
Limited
Unsecured Loans
March 31, 2024 2,094.03 3,026.64 - - -
March 31, 2023 470.62 1,135.52 - - -
Unsecured Borrowings
March 31, 2024 - - 33.97 42.69 28,761.69
March 31, 2023 - - 31.10 39.09 2,885.47
Trade Receivables
March 31, 2024 648.00 108.00 - - -
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A. Capital Management

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group
monitors capital using a gearing ratio!, which is net debt divided by adjusted equity. Net debt is calculated as
total liabilities (as shown in the balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances.
Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity other than amounts accumulated in the hedging and cost
of hedging. The Group's net debt to adjusted equity ratio i.e. capital gearing ratio as at March 31, 2024 and
March 31, 2023 was as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Total Borrowings 33,984.40 2,955.66
Less: Cash & cash equivalents (incl other bank balances) 2,308.54 0.46
Adjusted net debt 31,675.86 2,955.20
Total Equity 2,321.25 84.40
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 13.65 35.01
B. Dividend

The Company follows the policy of Dividend for every financial year as may be decided by Board considering
financial performance of the company and other internal and external factors enumerated in the Company’s
dividend policy.

No dividend has been declared by the company during the reporting period.

Leases

As a Lessee
The Group leases office.The leases typically run for a period of 1 to 3 years.

Information about leases for which the group is a lessee is presented below:

The Group also leases other office premises with contract terms of one to three years. These leases are short
term and/ or leases of low value items.The group has not elected to recognise the right of use assets and lease
liabilities for these items.



(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Right of Use Asset
For disclosure relating to Right-of-use assets refer note 4(b)

Lease Liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current 8.91 -
Non - Current - -
Total Lease Liability 8.91 -
Amount recognised in Profit & Loss:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expenses relating to short term leases 10.61 -
Interest Expenses on lease liabilities 1.40 -
Amortisation of Right-of-use asset 10.43 -
Net impact on profit/loss 22.44 -
Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows under financing activity
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Payment of lease liabilities 10.29 -
Interest Expense 1.40 -
Net impact on profit/loss 11.69 -
General Description of leasing agreements:

Leased assets consists of Office Premises. Future Lease rentals are determined on the basis of agreed terms.
Other Terms includes Lock-in period of 6 months and renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms.
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Trentar Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

51 Other disclosure requirements as per Schedule III
i) As on March 31, 2024 there is no unutilised amounts in respect of any issue of securities arud long term borrowings from banks
and Financial Institution. The borrowed funds have been utilised for the purpose for which they were raised.
ii) The Group do not have any charge or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with registrar of companies beyond the statutory
period.
iif) The Group is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of the Companies Act read with the
companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
iv)The Group do not have any Benami property where any proceedings has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding
any Benami property.
v) The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
vi) The Group does not have any such transaction which is recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessment undet the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or Survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
vii) During the year the Group did not engage in any transaction with the struck off companies.
52 Reporting under Rule 11(d) of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014
No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Group company incorporated in India to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries") with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in
party identified by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Group company incorporated in India has not received
any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Group shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
53 Previous years' figures have been re-grouped/ re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm to current period’s classification in order
to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.
For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Trentar Private Limited
Firm's Registration: 103592W/W100028 CIN: U40100MH2021PTC360196

Hasm u k Digitally signed

by Hasmukh

h Nanji  anjshan /
chah /Do , h
o

Hasmukh N. Shah Sudhir-Menon Subodh Menon
Partner Director Director
Membership number: 038407 DIN: 02487658 DIN: 00972842
UDIN:

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 11th Sept 2024 Date: 11th Sept 2024 Date: 11th Sept 2024



Trentar Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(All Amounts in '000)

: Note As at As at
Particulars No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I._ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 20.78 52.37
(b) Other Intangible Asset 6 320.25 450.36
(c)Financial Assets
(i) Investment 7 2,98,307.36 23,565.79
(if) Loans 8 29,26,667.04 1,60,614.34
(d) Income Tax Asset (Net) 9 5,216.85 1,330.83
(¢) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 26 2,256.19 2,291.17
Total Non Current Assets 32,32,788.47 1,88,304.85
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 86,400.00 12.80
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 13,479.38 46.00
(iii) Loans 12 18,000.00 1,08,759.23
Total Current Assets 1,17,879.38 1,08,818.03
TOTAL ASSETS 33,50,667.85 2,97,122.88
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 13 26,000.00 26,000.00
(b) Other Equity 14 8,116.85 (26,179.36)
Total Equity 34,116.85 (179.36)
Liabilities
(1) Non Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 32,76,815.93 2,95,566.22
Total Non- Current Liabilities 32,76,815.93 2,95,566.22
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables - -
Total outstanding dues of Small enterprises & Micro
Enterprises - -
. Total outstanding d.ues of creditors other than micro 1,080.00 200.00
enterprises and small enterprises 16
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 19,432.57 1,516.01
(b) Other Current Liabilities 18 19,222.50 20.00
Total Current Liabilities 39,735.07 1,736.01
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 33,50,667.85 2,97,122.88
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 103592W/W100028

Digitally signed by
Hasmukh Hasmukh Nanji
Shah

al
Nanji Shah pate: 2024.09.11

Selli

23:15:10 +05'30" _—
Hasmukh N. Shah Sudhtir Menon
Partner Director

DIN : 02487658
Place : Mumbai

Membership No. 038407
Place: Mumbai

Date: 11th September, 2024 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Trentar Private Limited
CIN: U40100MH2021PTC36019

Date : 11th September, Date : 11th September,
2024

0 /
P
Subodh Menon
Director
DIN : 00972842
Place : Mumbai




Trentar Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All Amounts in '000)

Sr. No Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 2023-24 2022-23
1 Revenue from operations (net) 19| 1,01,923.78 -
I Other income 20] 86,973.62 13,345.72
11 Total Income (I+1I) 1,88,897.40 13,345.72
v EXPENSES
Purchases of Stock in Trade 21 19,980.76 -
Employee benefit expense 22| - 3.00
Finance costs 23 1,14,876.36 18,190.45
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 161.70 161.70
Other expenses 25 8,083.14 21,714.02
Total Expenses (IV) 1,43,101.96 40,069.17
V  |Profit/(loss) before tax (III - IV) 45,795.44 (26,723.45)
VI  |Tax Expenses :
1) Current Tax 26 11,464.24 -
2) Deferred Tax 26 34.98 (1,746.08)
VII |Profit/(loss) for the year (V - VI) 34,296.22 24,977.36)

Earning per equity share of face value of ¥ 1 each
Basic and Diluted (in Rupees) 27| 1.32 (0.96)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Trentar Private Limited
Firm's Registration No: 103592W/W100028 CIN:; 1J40100MH2021PTC360196
Hasmukh DlgltaHy signed /
Nan]| Nan]l Shah
Shah ~ sasoss0 —_—
Hasmukh N. Shah = Sudhir Men Menon Subodh Menon
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 038407 DIN : 02487658 DIN : 00972842
Place: Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : 11th September, Date : 11th September,
Date: 11th September, 2024 2024 2024




Trentar Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024
(All Amounts in '000)

Particulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Net profit before tax 45,795.44 (26,723.45)
Adjustments for :
- Depreciation & Amortisation (net) 161.70 161.70
- Interest & Finance Charges 1,14,876.36 18,190.45
- Interest Income (86,973.62) (13,345.72)
2. Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 73,859.88 (21,717.02)
Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in Working Capital:
- Trade Receivables (86,387.20) 9,899.20
- Other financial assets - (44,626.73)
- Trade and other payables 880.00 (130.33)
- Other Financial Liability & Provisions 17,916.56 -
- Other Current Liabilities 19,202.50 102.49
3. Increase / Decrease in Working Capital (48,388.14) (34,755.37)
4. Cash generated from Operations after changes in Working Capital (1 + ] 25,471.75 (56,472.39)
Other Comprehensive Income
Income Tax Paid (15,350.26) (1,234.29)
NET CASH FLOW FROM/ (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 10,121.48 (57,706.68)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in Subsidiaries/ Assosiate (2,74,741.58) (288.94)
Purchase of Fixed Assets - 1.94
NET CASH FLOW FROM/ (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,74,741.58) (287.00)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan Given (25,88,319.86) (1,47,268.62)
Loan Taken 29,81,249.71 2,21,933.85
Interest (1,14,876.36) (18,190.45)
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,78,053.48 56,474.79
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (4 13,434.39 (1,518.89)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 46.94 1,566.83
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year (Refer Note No. 4) 13,480.33 46.94
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents) 13,477.82 40.55
(b) Cash on Hand 1.56 5.45
(c) Term deposits with bank original maturity of less than 3 months - -
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents (a) + (b) + (c) 13,479.38 46.00
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 13,479.38 46.00

As per our report of even date attached.

For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 103592W/W100028

Hasmuk oigitally signed
.. byHasmukh
h NanJ| Nanji Shah
Date: 2024.09.11

Shah 23:15:57 +05'30"
Hasmukh N. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 038407
Place: Mumbai

Date: 11th September, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Trentar Private Limited
CIN: U40100MH2021PTC360196

Sudhir Menon
Director

DIN : 02487658
Place : Mumbai
Date : 11th
September, 2024

bl G

Subodh Menon
Director

DIN : 00972842
Place : Mumbai
Date : 11th
September, 2024




Trentar Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All Amounts in '000)

Equity share capital
Particulars No. of Shares Amount
Balance as at March 31,2023 26,000.00 26,000.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 26,000.00 26,000.00
Balance as at April 01, 2022 26,000.00 26,000.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 26,000.00 26,000.00
Other Equity
Particulars Retained Earnings Total

Balance as on March 31, 2023 (26,179.36) (26,179.36)
Add: Profit for the year 34,296.22 34,296.22
Balance as on March 31. 2024 8,116.86
Balance as on March 31, 2022 (1,201.99) (1,201.99)
Add: Loss for the year (24,977.37) (24,977.37)
Balance as on March 31. 2023 (26,179.36) (26,179.36)
The description of nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:
Retained Earnings:
Retained earnings are the profit that the company has earned till date.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Trentar Private Limited
Firm's Registration No: 103592W/W100028 CIN: U40100MH2021PTC360196

Hasmuk pigitally signed

..  byHasmukh -
h Nanji  aniishah gu./(/(/{,\ & /
Date: 2024.09.11
Shah 23:16:18 405'30' e s
—

Hasmukh N. Shah Sudhir Menon Subodh Menon
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 038407 DIN : 02487658 DIN : 00972842

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11th September, 2024

Place : Mumbai
2024

Place : Mumbai
2024




Trentar Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Company's Overview:

1  Background
The Company was established in 2021 to carry on in india and abroad the business of manufacturing, processing, refining, formulation,
treating, storing, transpotation, making, marketing, importing, exporting, buying, selling, trading, distributing or otherwise dealing in all type
of fuel cells including hydrogen fuel cells and alternative energy related components , manufacturing and selling of Drone , Services of Al,
survilliance work , Mapping work .

2 S of Key Acc ing Policies
(i) Basis for preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act. .
The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 11th September, 2024.
(ii)Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention basis, except for certain assets and liabilities measured at fair
value.
(iii)Functional & Presentational Currency
The company's presentation and functional currency is Indian Rupees (Rs in INR).
(iv) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the company's financial it ires mar to make jud 1ts, esti and assumptions that affect the
reported of p assets, liabilities and the accompanying dlsclosures along with contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and eshmabes could result in outcomes that require material adjustments to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods. The company continually evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available
information.
In particular, information about signifi areas of esti and judg in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as below:
(i) Estimates of Useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets;
(ii) Provisions;
(iii) Contingencies and;
(iv) Evaluation of Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets;
(v) Impairment of Trade Receivables
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

3  Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.
(b) Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on Straight Line Method (SLM) . Depreciation
is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

(c) Impairment of Non Financial Assets

Non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets.

(d) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet include cash at bank, cash, cheque, draft on hand and demand deposits with an original
maturity of less than three months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flows,
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, cash, cheque and draft on hand. The company considers all highly liquid investments with a
remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash
equivalents.



(e) Revenue Recognition
Sale of Products
Revenue is recognised using the following five step model specified in Ind AS 115
Step 1: Identify contracts with customers
Step 2: Identify performance obligations contained in the contracts
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
Step 5: Recognize revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied The performance obligations arising from sale of products with
Company’s customers are satisfied at a point in time

Sales are net of returns, trade discounts, rebates, sales tax and goods and service tax (GST), as applicable.

Sale of Services

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. The Company assesses promises in the contract that
are separate performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price as specified in the contract with the customer. It excludes taxes or other amounts collected
from customers in its capacity as an agent. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers below:

- Variable consideration - This includes bonus, incentives, discounts etc. It is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at end of each reporting period.

- Significant financing component - Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in
Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it
expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays
for that good or service will be one year or less.

- Consideration payable to a customer - Such amounts are accounted as reduction of transaction price and therefore, of revenue unless the
payment to the customer is in exchange for a distinct good or service that the customer transfers to the Company.



Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price. The
accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to the existing contract are distinct and whether the
pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that
are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a
termination of existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Interest
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

tstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest

PP

(f) Income Taxes

(i) Current Tax
Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the Statement of Profit and Loss, other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

(ii) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(g) Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
preference dividends, if any, and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares

(i) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of reimbursements, if any.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the

risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

(ii) Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of economic resources
is considered remote.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments disclosed are in respect of items which in each case are above the threshold limit.

(j) Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

(i) Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current:

4

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal operating cycle (determined at 12 months) and
other criteria set out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

Recent Pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under the companies (Indian
Accounting standards) rules as issued from time to time. There is no such notification which would be applicable from 1st April 2024 at the end
of accounting policies.



Trentar Private Limited

Notes forming part of Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All Amounts in '000)

5 Property, Plant & Equipment

Particulars Computer Total
Gross Block
Balance as at March 31, 2022 99.75 99.75
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 99.75 99.75
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 99.75 99.75
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2022 15.79 15.79
Charge for the year 31.59 31.59
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 47.38 47.38
Charge for the year 31.59 31.59
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 78.97 78.97
Net Block
Balance as at March 31, 2023 52.37 52.37
Balance as at March 31, 2024 20.78 20.78

Other Intangible Assets

Particulars Brand Total
Gross Block
Balance as at 31st March 2022 684.79 684.79
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 684.79 684.79
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 684.79 684.79
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as on 31st March 2022 104.32 104.32
Charge for the year 130.11 130.11
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 234.43 234.43
Charge for the year 130.11 130.11
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 364.54 364.54
Net Block
Balance as at March 31, 2023 450.36 450.36
Balance as at March 31, 2024 320.25 320.25




Trentar Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All Amounts in '000)

7

Investments

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Ungquoted investment at amortised cost

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary

TM Aero Space Pvt. Ltd.

9,999 (March 31 2023 : 4,900) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each, fully
paid up

Steaslit Sysytem Limited

62,70,000 (March 31 2023 : Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 1 Each, fully
paid up

Investment in equity instruments of associate

GarudaUAYV Soft Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

3,600 (March 31 2023 : 2,600) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each, fully
paid up

RFLY Innovations Pvt. Limited

48,000 (March 31 2023 : 48,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 1 Each, fully
paid up

Investment in equity instruments of other entities
Trishula Advanced Composites and Electronics Pvt. Ltd.

10 (March 31 2023 : 10) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each, fully paid up

Unguoted investment at FVTPL

Investment in Mutual Funds

Investment in Aditya Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund
25,296.26 (as at March 31, 2023: Nil) of Rs. 389.68 each

99.99

2,19,410.00

68,575.97

363.79

0.15

9,857.47

49.00

23,152.85

363.79

0.15

2,98,307.36

23,565.79

Aggregate amount of quoted investment

Aggregate market value of quoted investment

Aggregate amount of unquoted investment

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investment

Loans

2,98,307.36

23,565.79

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Loan to Related Parties (Refer Note No. 32)

29,26,667.04

1,60,614.34

29,26,667.04

1,60,614.34

Income Tax Asset (net)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Advance Income Tax (net of provision)*

5,216.85

1,330.83

5,216.85

1,330.83

* Net of Provision of Rs 11,464.24 (in '000) (March 31,2023 - Nil)




Trentar Private Limited
Notes ing part of Fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All Amounts in '000)

10 Trade Receivables

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

(a)Trade Receivables considered good - Secured

(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured; - 12.80

i. From Related Party 86,400.00 -

ii. From other than related party

(Less:) Allowance as per Expected Credit Loss Model - -
Total 86,400.00 12.80

Ageing for trade receivables - current outstanding as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for Following Period from Due Date of Payment

Particulars
Unbilled | Not due Less than 6 6 months-1year| 1-2Year 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
months Years
(i)Undisputed Trade Receivables-Considered Good - - 86,400.00 - - - - 86,400.00
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- which have significant - -

increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable- credit impaired - - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-which have significant increase - -
in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables-credit Impaired - - - - - - - -

Net Trade Receivable - - 86,400.00 - - - - 86,400.00

Ageing for trade receivables - current outstanding as at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for Following Period from Due Date of Payment

Particulars
Unbilled | Not due Less than 6 6 months-1year| 1-2Year 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
months Years
(i)Undisputed Trade Receivables-Considered Good - - 12.80 - - - - 12.80
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- which have significant - -

increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable- credit impaired - - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-which have significant increase - -
in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables-credit Impaired - -

Net Trade Receivable - - 12.80 - - - - 12.80

Refer note 31 for credit risk and market risk associated with trade receivables
Refer note 33 for details regarding trade receivable from related parties

11 _Cash & Cash equivalents

Asat Asat

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

(a) Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash

equivalents)
(i) In Current Accounts 13,477.82 40.55
(b) Cash on Hand 156 545
Total 13,479.38 46.00
12 Loans
. Asat Asat
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Loan to Related Parties (Refer Note No. 32) 18,000.00 1,08,759.23

Total 18,000.00 1,08,759.23




Trentar Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All Amounts in '000)

13  Equity Share Capital

Asat Asat
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Authorised:
7,00,00,000 (as at March 31, 2023: 7,00,00,000) Equity Shares of
Rs.1/- each 70,000.00 70,000.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up :
2,60,00,000 (as at March 31, 2023: 2,60,00,000) Equity Shares of

Rs.1/- each 26,000.00 26,000.00

Total 26,000.00 26,000.00
131 R iliation of the shares ding at the and at the end of the year

Particulars Asat Asat

March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 26,000.00 26,000.00
Add : Shares issued during the year - -
Equity Shares at the end of the year 26,000.00 26,000.00

132 Discl of Shareholding of Pr

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March, 2024 % of change
Name of Promoter No. of Shares % of total during the year
Dorf Ketal chemical India Pvt. Ltd. 65,00,000 25% 0%
Sudhir Menon 86,84,551 33% 0%
Subodh Menon 1,08,15,449 42% 0%
Total 2,60,00,000 100%
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st Mar, 2023 % of change
Name of Promoter No. of Shares % of total during the year
Dorf Ketal chemical India Pvt. Ltd. 65,00,000 25% 0%
Sudhir Menon 86,85,000 33% 0%
Subodh Menon 1,08,15,000 42% 0%
Total 2,60,00,000 100%
13.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:
Particulars No. of % held as at No. of % held as at
shares March 31, 2024 shares March 31, 2023
Dorf Ketal chemical India Pvt. Ltd. 6,500.00 25% 6,500.00 25%
Sudhir Menon 8,684.55 33% 8,684.55 33%
Subodh Menon 10,81545 42% 10,81545 42%

134 Rights of Shareholders
The company has one class of equity shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except Interim Dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all the preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding.

14 Other Equity

Asat Asat
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
(a) Retained Earnings/Surplus
Opening balance (26,179.36) (1,201.99)
Add: Profit/Loss for the year 34,296.22 (24,977.37),
8,116.86 (26,179.36)
Total Reserves & Surplus 8,116.86 (26,179.36)

(a)Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date after appropriation of profits.



Trentar Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

15 Non- Current financial liabilities - Borrowings

Asat Asat
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Unsecured
(i) Loan from Related Parties** 28,83,834.83 2,95,566.22
(ii)Loan from Financial Institutions
- Loan From Aditya Birla Finance Limited* 3,92,981.10 -
TOTAL 32,76,815.93 2,95,566.22

*The principal amount of loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited is repayable within 4 years in 7 structured installments & interest is payable monthly at
the interest rate of 10% p.a. till the repayment of principal amount. The charge for this loan is created on movable property and book debts of the
company.

**The loan from related party is repayable within 5 years from date of disbursement and interest is payable @ 10% p.a.

16 Trade Payables
Particulars

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(a) Total outstanding dues of Small enterprises & Micro

Enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note below) 1,080.00 200.00
Total 1,080.00 200.00
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year
end - -

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end - -
Principal paid to suppli i d under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day
during the year - -
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond
the appointed day during the year - -
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year - -
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the - -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year - -
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date

‘when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance

of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act - -

Notes
(i) Dues to Micro and Small ises have been d ined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
i llected by the g same is relied upon by the Auditors
(ii) There were no dues outstanding to MSME as on March 31, 2024 exceeding 45 days and hence Company is not liable to pay any
interest on the outstanding figures.

Ageing for trade payable - current outstanding as at March 31, 2024

the following

Particul.
a upto 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years MU;Z:‘;:“ 3 Total

Undisputed dues- MSME - - - - -
Undisputed dues - Others 1,080.00 - - - 1,080.00
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - -

1,080.00 - - - 1,080.00
Ageing for trade payable - current outstanding as at March 31, 2023
the following
Particul
o upto 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years MU;Z:‘;:“ 3 Total

Undisputed dues- MSME - - - - -
Undisputed dues - Others 200.00 - - - 200.00
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - -

200.00 - - - 200.00
17  Other financial liabilities
. Asat Asat
Particular March31,2024  March 31, 2023
|- Statutory Dues | 1943257 | 1,516.01 |
| Total | 19432.57 | 1,516.01
18  Other Current Liabilities
. Asat Asat
Particular March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
(a) Other Payables:
- Liabilities for Expense 1,222.50 20.00
-Advance from customer 18,000.00 -
Total 19,222.50 20.00
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24

25

ing part of Fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All Amounts in '000)
from op i
. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from contracts with customer
Sale of products 21,923.78 -
Sale of services 80,000.00 -
Total Revenue from Op i 1,01,923.78 -
Other Income
. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest income
On Loan given to related party 86,810.90 13,308.26
On income tax refund 53.23 -
On Fixed Deposit 201 3746
Gain on Fair Valuation of Mutual Funds 10747 -
Total 86,973.62 13,345.72
Purchases of Stock in Trade
. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purchases of Stock in Trade 19,980.76
Total 19,980.76 -
Employee benefit expense
. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries and Wages - -
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds - -
Staff Welfare Expenses - 3.00
Total - 3.00
Finance Costs
. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Interest Expense
On loan from related party 1,07,935.97 18,170.95
On late payment of taxes 99.30 1240
On loan from financial institution 6,841.10 -
Bank charges - 7.10
Total 1,14,876.36 18,190.45
Depreciation and amortisation expense
. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 31.59 31.59
Amortisation on intangible assets 130.11 130.11
Total 161.70 161.70
Other exp
. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Auditors Remunaration (Refer 24.a) 295.00 40.00
Business Promotion Exp - 11.82
Bank Chrages 14.45
Exhibition Charges - 723.86
Printing & Stationery 6.61 31.78
Loss on Sale of Share - 25.95
Legal & Professional Charges 5139.44 820.76
Rates & Taxes 2771 250
Rent 60.00 60.00
ROC Charges 0.60 -
Stamp Duty 1,541.92 200
Travelling Charges 2242 -
Gurantee Commission 975.00
Write Back creditors - 19,995.35
Total 8,083.14 21,714.02
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252 P to Audi
. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
As Auditors
Statutory Audit Fees 295.00 40.00
Tax Audit Fees - -
Other Services - -
Total 295.00 40.00
26 Taxation
(A) Income tax expense recognized in the statement of profit or loss
. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Tax 11,464.24 -
Deferred Tax 3498 (1,746.08)
Total 11,499.22 (1,746.08!
(B) Deferred tax relates to the following:
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset
On preliminary expenses 8223 161.41
On unabsorbed losses 1,935.63 2,154.61
On provision for expenses 245.39 -
2,263.25 2,316.01
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
On property, plant and equipment 7.06 24.85
7.06 24.85
Net Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) 2,256.19 2,291.17
Movement in deferred tax balances :
For the year ended March 31, 2024:
. . Recognized in .
Particulars Opening Balance Profit or Loss Closing Balance
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset
On preliminary expenses 161.41 (79.17) 8223
On unabsorbed losses 2,154.61 (218.97) 1,935.63
On provision for expenses - 245.39 245.39
2,316.01 (52.76) 2,263.25
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
On property, plant and equipment 24.85 (17.78 7.06
24.85 (17.78) 7.06
Net Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) 2,291.17 (34.98 2,256.19
For the year ended March 31, 2023:
. . Recognized in .
Particulars Opening Balance Profit or Loss Closing Balance
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset
On preliminary expenses 203.88 (42.48) 161.41
On unabsorbed losses 368.19 1,786.41 2,154.61
On provision for expenses - - -
572.08 1,743.94 2,316.01
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
On property, plant and equipment 26.99 214) 24.85
26.99 (214) 24.85
Net Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) 545.09 1,746.08 2,291.17
(C) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit before tax from continuing operations 45,795.44 -26,723.45
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (Tax rate - 25.17%) 11,525.80 -
Tax effect of:
-Non Deductible expenses -245.55 (1,746.08)
-Effect of reversal of unabsorbed losses on which DTA is recognised 218.97 -
-Taxable at different rate - -
-Interest on late pa t of taxes - -
Total 11,499.22 -1,746.08
27 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
There are no potential equity shares and hence the basic and diluted EPS are the same.
Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the d average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year, as under:
(a) Profit attri le to Equity holders of C y
. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic and
diluted earnings per share 34,296.22 (24,977.37)
(b) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of issued equity shares at April 01 26,000 26,000
Effect of shares issued - -
Nominal value per share 1 1
Weighted average number of shares at March 31 for basic and diluted
earnings per shares 26,000 26,000
(c) Basic and Diluted earnings per share (in Rs) {(@@)/(b)} 1.32 | (0.96)
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For year ended  For year ended March
28 Contingent liabilities and commitments March 31, 2024 31,2023

L Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts - -
L Contingent liabilities - -

1L Commitments
Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for - -

29 Capital management
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requi; of the fi ial co . To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted equity. Net debt is calculated as total liabilities (as shown in the balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents and other bank

balances. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity other than acc lated in the hedging and cost of hedging. The Group's net debt to adjusted equity ratio i.e.
capital gearing ratio as at March 31 2024 and March 31 2023 was as follows:

Particulars March 31 2024 March 31 2023
Borrowings 33,16,551.00 2,97,302.23
Less: Cash & cash equivalents 13,479.38 46.00
Adjusted net debt 33,03,071.62 2,97,256.23
Total Equity 34,116.85 (179.36)
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 96.82 (1,657.36)

30 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
The fair value of investments, trade receivable, cash and cash equivalents, loans, trade payables, short term borrowings and other current financial liabilities approximate the carrying amounts
because of the short term nature of these financial instruments.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired include cash and cash equivalents, security deposits, term deposits, and other financial assets.

Fair value hierarchy

The following is the hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

*Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

*Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
*Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

No financial assets/liabilities have been valued using level 1 fair value measurements.

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

As on March 31, 2024
Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars Quoted Price in Significant Significant
FVTPL FVTOa Amortised cost Total active markets | observable inputs| unobservable inputs Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
Investment - Non current 9,857.47 - 2,88,449.90 2,98,307.36 - - 9,857.47 -
Trade receivables - - 86,400.00 86,400.00 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 13,479.38 13,479.38 - - - -
Loans - - 18,000.00 18,000.00 - - - -
Financial Liabilities -
Trade payables - - 1,080.00 1,080.00 - - - -
Borrowings- short term
borrowings - - 32,76,815.93 32,76,815.93 - - - -
As on March 31, 2023
ing amount Fair value
Particulars Quoted Price in Significant Significant
FVTPL FVTOQI Amortised cost Total active markets | observable inputs| unobservable inputs Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
Investment - Non current - - 23,565.79 23,565.79 - - - -
Trade receivables - - 12.80 12.80 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 46.00 46.00 - - - -
Loans - - 1,08,759.23 1,08,759.23 - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables - - 200.00 200.00 - - - -
Borrowings- short term
borrowings - - 2,95,566.22 2,95,566.22 - - - -




31 Risk management Framework
The Company is exposed to various financial risks. These risks are categorized into market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's risk management is coordinated by the

Board of Directors who focuses on securing long term and short term cash flows. The Company does not engage in trading of financial assets for speculative purposes.

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and derivative
financial instruments.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company does not have any
borrowings with floating interest rates and thus, it is not exposed to interest rate risk. However, the company has borrowings with fixed interest rate.

(ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure
to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency from the
Company’s functional currency.

The Company has not foreign currency denominated monetary assets. The Company is not exposed to this risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises principally
from the Company’s receivables from deposits with landlords and other statutory deposits with regulatory agencies and also arises from cash held with banks and financial
institutions. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in
financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the financial assets as at March 31 2024, March 31 2023 is the carrying amounts as mentioned in Note 8.

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence
the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and country in which customers operate. Details of concentration of revenue are included in
Note 16.

The Company allocates loss rate and provide 100% exposure which is due for more than three years are not good and unsecured. Exposure is not provided for receivables which are
secured by security deposits.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL's for trade receivables

Trade Receivable for March 31, 2024

(Rs in '000)
Ageing {A verége Gross Carrying Loss Allowance
oss rate Amount

Unbilled 0% - -
Not due 0% - -
Less than 6 months 0% 86,400.00 -
6 months -1 Year 0% - -
1-2 years 0% - -
2-3 years 0% - -
More than 3 years 0% - -
Total 100% 86,400.00 -

Trade Receivable for March 31, 2023

(Rs in '000)
. Average | Gross Carryin,

Ageing loss ratge Amouni, € | Loss Allowance
Unbilled 0% - -
Not due 0% - -
Less than 6 months 0% 12.80 -
6 months -1 Year 0% - -
1-2 years 0% - -
2-3 years 0% - -
More than 3 years 0% - -
Total 100% 12.80 -

As there is no provision for Loss allowance, no movement for Loss allowance is disclosed

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as

possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due.
Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and include contractual interest
payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying Value Within 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
As on March 31, 2024
Borrowings 32,76,815.93 - 32,76,815.93 32,76,815.93
Trade payables 1,080.00 1,080.00 - - - 1,080.00
32,77,895.93 1,080.00 32,76,815.93 - - 32,77,895.93
As on March 31, 2023 Carrying Value Within 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 2,95,566.22 - 2,95,566 - - 2,95,566
Trade payables 200.00 200.00 - - 200

2,95,766.22 200.00 2,95,566 - - 2,95,766
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33 Related party disclosures

()
a)

b)

C

d)

e

Name of Related Party and the nature of Relationship
Holding Company
Dorf ketal Chemical Private Limted

Subsidiary Company
TM Aerospace Private Limited
Steaslit Sytem Limited

Step - subsidiary Company
Tineta Pharma Private Limited

Associate Company
GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
Rfly Innovations pvt limited

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Sudhir V. Menon
Mr. Subodh V. Menon

(ii) Transactions with Related Parties

(i)

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured Loans Given (Net
Loan To GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 1,62,340.45 23,152.85
Loan to TM Aerospace Private Limited 19,77,290.77 49.00
Loan to RFly Innovations 1,89,112.26 363.79
Loan to Steaslit Sytem Limited 3,46,550.00 -
Interest received
Loan to TM Aerospace Private Limited 32,962.33 6,054.55
Loan to Rfly Innovations Pvt Ltd 18,715.35 4,363.94
Loan to Steaslit System Private Limited 21,532.73 -
Loan to GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Private Limied 13,600.50 2,889.77
Purchase
TM Aerospcae Private Limited 19,980.76 -
Sales
Rfly Innovation Private Limied 31,923.78 -
GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Private Limied 60,000.00 -
Steaslit System Private Limited 10,000.00 -
Advance received from customer
Tineta Pharma Private Limited 18,000.00 -
Unsecured Loans Taken (Net)
Dorf ketal Chemical Private Limted 25,87,621.91 2,88,547.23
Subodh Menon 360.12 3,908.58
Sudhir Menon 286.58 3,110.41
Interest paid
Dorf ketal Chemical Private Limted 1,07,217.41 17,527.01
Subodh Menon 400.13 285.36
Sudhir Menon 318.42 358.59
Loan written off - 19,995.35
Investments
Investment in TM Aerospace Pvt. Ltd. 50.99 -
Investment in Steaslit Sytem Limited 2,19,410.00 -
Investment in GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 45,423.12 -
Investment in RFly Innovations - 363.79
Balance Outstanding of Related Parties
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loans
Loan To GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 2,09,403 47,063
Loan to TM Aerospace Private Limited 20,68,050 90,759
Loan to RFly Innovations 3,02,664 1,13,552
Loan to Steaslit Sytem Limited 3,46,550 -
Trade receivables
GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 64,800.00 12.80
Rfly Innovations pvt limited 10,800.00 -
Steaslit Sytem Limited 10,800.00 -
Investments
Investment in TM Aerospace Pvt. Ltd. 99.99 49.00
Investment in Steaslit Sytem Limited 2,19,410.00 -
Investment in GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 68,575.97 23,152.85
Investment in RFly Innovations 363.79 363.79
Advance from customer
Tineta Pharma Private Limited 18,000.00 -
Unsecured Loans taken / repaid (Net)
Dorf ketal Chemical Private Limted 28,76,169.14 2,88,547.23
Subodh Menon 4,268.70 3,908.58
Sudhir Menon 3,396.99 3,110.41




*SILIRIDLJOUY P[] YY) JO J[RYdq UO IO 0} I] Ay} 10 AJLIND3s ‘ddjuerens Aue papraoid J0u dALY SILIRTPIULIdIUL

"200C 1PV Suripune] Asuowr jo uoruasald ayj Jo IANL[OIA JOU AR SUOHDRSURL} IS, "CT0T
1oy saruedwo)) au jo pue (ajqedsrdde 1aaaraym) 6661 10V Juewadeury agueydxy udrarog ayy jo suorsiaord jueasjar ayy yim pardwod sey Auedwo)) ayy ‘suornoesues} IA0qe ) 10

PION

‘PaYTUDPT SuondesUEL) ON
€20T “I€ YOTeJAl PIPUD 1edA 1) 101

Auedwiod urpjoy ay3 Jo s[reiap auy} 10§ ¢¢ d)0u IJY,

‘NI

$9000% HIN A1D requiny requinjy
1S9OM PPICIN 38T [PU] ysereq

IN “uixg sue erpueydwey ‘TedeN
BoApn noW ‘7 ‘¢ "oN u1qeD/

‘ON @JO SSIIPPV PAIANSISay
1€£E8EDIILIOCHINO06CLA :NID

payuary
VN VN VN SJRALLJ SUORN|OS YOS ARNRPIIRD)| T[ETH'Gh 00°00L°0ST
o
€01£09 NI, werndaaypuey reuusy)
INpeJ 19908 AL ‘L1/8%9
‘Ch 'ON SSIPPYV PaIdISISNY
SLT6L1DLALI0CNL666YN NID
VN VN VN Pyl S7eALL] suoneAouu] ALY 0T9LL'LLL
“ur 16000Z
AM YMON seurdieJ eiey[oy
A-10323g ‘e Ies ‘d-dg porg
'€-CH 'ON 10]J 100T IS[ ‘STOMO],
I[PSAG [SSAPPY PIIANSITY
9/¥SSTDTI010Cd M8B061EN ‘NID
VN VN VN pajwr] ways£g NesAs| 00°01'61°C 0S'6££'6¢'E
"¢L000Y - ®IpuI "££009S
“eIYSRIRYRIA ‘TRqUINJA  TEMOJ - erpuy “exerewrey| ‘aroredueg jerefno
‘peoy JeyrA 1es ‘9 91eD 131 * HIRYRYIRIRIA BR[[OYaUUN TTP0LE -UUdYdeY “@Ipuniy ‘VN
-ddo “pr1 syD sesrwai I1-sLre[os, noAe sarysefey ‘ssor) Py ZHS B HMOoJ 1uepy ‘N [ 10195 ‘4
‘9L /S1-D SSAAPPV PIIANSISANY YIF ‘S ON SS2IPPV PaIrdlsiSay -00[g “C’ON 10][d :SSIPPY PaIdISISY
1£8880D.1dS66 THINOECYCN ‘NID 199¥SIDLALT0TY80E6C *NID 619201D71dT66L[D001¥TN ‘NID
Paywiry ojeAll euLIRyJ BIRULL|  99'64£9961  |¥C0T-CO-CL popwr] ajealld adedsordy INL| - CLLIT'IL'6L ¥c0T-C0-S1 pajwi] eipuy spediway ) 3oy Hod| 00°00£°66'ST ¥c0T-C0-S1
Arerpaurur
pooueape spung amym Areriyouaq Arerpawajur Aq pasueape Arerpawrdjur | Axerpaursajur Arerpauridjur Aq spumg paduEApE STY OM papuny posueape
Aq pajrsaaur pasueape Spuny a1dym AIenijauaq Aq pasaaur Aq papuny pasueape YNy spunj jo
dewmn jo aweN o % Ayxeg Surpuny yo suwreN spuny jo ajeq
y1my spuny RYMNny IRIPIULIAIUL JO dWEN 1PYyNy spuny | 1PYMNy spuny spuny jo aje(q junowy
Jojunoury | spunj jo ajeq JO Junoury JO Junoury

$TOT “TE YITLIA PIPUd Tedh ap 104

Spuny pajsaAur Jo uoresnn sjewnn SurpreSay amsopPsIq e

(1)

®

(000, ux syunoury [1v)
$Z0T ‘T€ Y2TRJA PIPUD IedA 3Y) 10J SjudWd)e)s [erueur] jo jred Sururioy sajoN

PaIY] )AL TEJUDL],
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(A1l Amounts in '000)

35

36

Segment Reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur

expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components, and for which
discrete financial information is available. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company's Chief

Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

The Company is primarily engaged to carry on the business of manufacturing including production & processing and fabrication and
assembling, repairing, alteration, buying, importing, marketing, selling, exporting& otherwise dealing in all types of aerospace
components and parts thereof. Accordingly the Company has only one reportable business segment which is business of Aerospace
.Accordingly, reporting of primary segment under Ind AS 108 Operating Segment Reporting is not applicable.

Geographical segments
The Company operates wholly in India , hence geographical segment not applicable.

Others

i) As on March 31, 2024 there is no unutilised amounts in respect of any issue of securities arud long term borrowings from banks and
Financial Institution. The borrowed funds have been utilised for the purpose for which they were raised.

ii) The Company do not have any charge or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with registrar of companies beyond the statutory

iii) The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of the Companies Act read with the companies
iv)The Company do not have any Benami property where any proceedings has been initiated or pending against the Company for

v) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

vi) The Company have advanced or loaned or Invested on any other person(es) or Entity(es) including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
(vii) The Company have received any fund from any persor(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

viii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
ix) During the year the company did not engage in any transaction with the struck off companies.

37 Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to the classification of Current year.

38 Approval of Financial Statements

The above financial statements are approved by Board of Directors on

As per our report of even date attached.
For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Trentar Private Limited

Firm's Registration No: 103592W/W100028 CIN: U40100MH2021PTC360196
Hasmukh gercssy, . e
N a nj i S ha Date: 2024.09.11 / A

23:16:43 +05'30'

Hasmukh N. Shah Sudhiz Menpn Subodh Menon
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 038407 DIN : 02487658 DIN : 00972842
Place: Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 11th Date : 11th
Date: 11th September, 2024 September, 2024 September, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Trentar Private Limited
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Trentar Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit and total comprehensive income,
its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors Report and the related annexures, but does not include the Financial
Statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.



Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.



e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and on the
basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in Annexure A, a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.



(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in Annexure A.

(B)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with the requirements of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

(i)

The Company does not have any pending litigations which will impact its financial
positions.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv)

(V1)

(a)

(b)

(c)

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in Note 34 of the financial statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entities (“intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that such
intermediaries would, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in Note 34 of the financial statements, no funds have
been received by the company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entities (“funding parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the funding parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

The Company has not declared/ paid/ declared and paid any dividend during the
year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used the
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has been operated throughout the year for all the relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instances of tampering of audit trail feature and the audit trail has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.



(C) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
being a Private Company, Section 197 of the Act relating to managerial remuneration is not
applicable.

For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 103592W/W100028
Hasmukﬁ;gﬁ.fsl',ﬁ,jifﬁed

h Nanji fo ™"

2024.09.11
Shah 22:16:39 +05'30"
Hasmukh N. Shah
Partner

Membership No. 038407
UDIN: 24038407BKASVQ5777
Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 September 2024



Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Trentar
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 103592W/W100028

Ha smu k Digitally signed
by Hasmukh

h Nanji  Nanjishah

Date: 2024.09.11

Shah 22:17:02 +05'30'

Hasmukh N. Shah

Partner

Membership No. 038407
UDIN: 24038407BKASVQ5777
Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 September 2024



Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

[Referred to in Clause 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date]

(a) (1) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(2) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company conducts physical verification once
every three years of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and
equipment are verified in a phased manner. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant
and Equipment or intangible assets during the year.

(e) According to the information, explanations and representations given to us, no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The reporting under this clause is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by
the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of
account of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has made investments in mutual funds during the
year. The Company has not provided guarantee, has granted loans to companies during the year,
in respect of which the requisite information is below. The Company has not provided any
guarantee or security, granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to limited liability partnership or other parties during the year.
(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans as below.
A. The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

Loans (including interest accrued) During the Balance
(*in 000) Year outstanding
TM Aerospace Pvt. Ltd. 19,77,291 20,68,050
Steaslit Sytem Limited 3,46,550 3,46,550
Rfly Innovations Pvt. limited 1,89,112 3,02,664




Vi.

vii.

GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Pvt. Ltd. | 1,62,340 |  2,09,403

B. The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans to parties other than subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates

Loans (including interest accrued) During the Balance
(*in 000) Year outstanding
Trishula Advanced Composites Private Limited - 18,000

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made, guarantees provided,
security given during the year and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and
advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided during the year are, prima facie,
not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than
ninety days in respect of loans given.

(e) There were no loans or advances in the nature of loan granted which has/have fallen due
during the year, have been renewed or extended. Further, there were no instances of fresh
loans being granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms
or period of repayment

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, in respect of loans given by the company, in our opinion the
provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public to which directives issued
by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions
of the Act and the rules framed thereunder apply. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(v)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly, the reporting
under Clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of
excise, Sales tax and Value added tax during the year, these statutory dues has been subsumed
into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues
have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service



viii.

Xi.

Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions not
recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or
in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender till the date of
our audit report.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which
they were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not raised funds
on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures. Accordingly reporting under Clauses 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures. Accordingly reporting under Clauses 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially
or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, Clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints were received by the
Company during the year.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company
and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xii)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the
details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the companies
Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its holding company or persons
connected with them during the year and hence, the provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid
certificate of registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per Reserve Bank of India,
1934. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clauses 3(xvi)(c) and 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) As represented to us, the Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year; however, it incurred
cash losses of INR 2,65,61,748 /- in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been a resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, however no issue or
objection of concern has been raised by the outgoing Auditor.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.



XX. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 103592W/W100028

Hasmu k Digitally signed
by Hasmukh

h Nanji  Nanjishah
Date: 2024.09.11
Shah 22:17:22 +05'30'

Hasmukh N. Shah

Partner

Membership No. 038407
UDIN: 24038407BKASVQ5777
Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 September 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Trentar Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated Financial Statements of Trentar Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group”) and its associates, which comprise the consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its
associates as at March 31, 2024, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its associates in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s
annual report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.



If, based on the work we have performed and based on the audit report of other auditors, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of
the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act .

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements the respective Management and Board of
Directors of the Companies included in the Group and the respective Management and Board of
Directors of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board
of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of
Directors of the Companies included in the Group and the respective Management and Board of
Directors of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and the respective
Management and Board of Directors and the respective Board of Directors of its associates are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk



of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates
and s to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements
of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further
described in paragraph (a) of the section titled “Other Matters” in this audit report

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.



From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of 1 subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs 7,653.34 lakhs as at March 31, 2024, total revenues
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs 3,000.96 lakhs, total net profit after tax (before consolidation
adjustments) of Rs 473.30 lakhs and net cash inflows (before consolidation adjustments) amounting
to Rs 9.23 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary
is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries and
associates as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.



(e)

(f)

(B)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate
company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated
in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate / consolidated financial
statements of the subsidiaries, associates and s, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph:

(i) The Group as detailed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, has
disclosed the impact of pending litigation(s) on its financial position as at March 31,
2024;

(ii) The Group and its associates did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv)

(a) The management of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries represented to us,
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of its subsidiary
companies and associate company incorporated in India to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of its
subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in India (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries represented to us,
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by
the Holding Company or any of its subsidiary companies and associate company
incorporated in India from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of its subsidiary companies and
associate company incorporated in India shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe



that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

(v)

(vi)

The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and associate company
incorporated in India have neither declared nor paid any dividend during the
year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the group has used the
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all the
relevant transactions recorded in the software Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instances of tampering of audit trail
feature and the audit trail has been preserved by the group companies as per
the statutory requirements for record retention. Except in the case of 1
subsidiary where the audit trail facility was not activated and operational
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
However, that subsidiary represented that the audit trail facility has been
activated as on the date of signing the report of it.

(C) With respect to matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16) of the

Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
the reports of the statutory auditor of such subsidiary company incorporated in India which
were not audited by us, the managerial remuneration is not paid or provided during the

current year.

The remuneration paid to any director by the the Holding Company and its

subsidiary companies and associate company is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 103592W/W100028

Hasm uk Digitally signed
by Hasmukh

h Nanji Nanji Shah
Date: 2024.09.11
Shah 22:20:19 +05'30'

Hasmukh N. Shah
Partner

Membership No. 038407

UDIN: 24038407BKASV
Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 September 20
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
[Referred to in Clause 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date]

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following companies
incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have adverse remarks
given by its respective auditors in their reports under the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
(CARO):

Sr. | Name of the companies Holding/ Clause number of CARO

No. Subsidiary/ | report which is adverse
Associate

1 Trentar Private Limited Holding Para 3(iii), 3(xvii) & 3

(xviii)

2 Tineta Pharma Private Limited Subsidiary | Para 3 (xviii)

3 Stesalit Systems Limited Subsidiary | Para 3(vii)

4 Garuda UAV Soft Solutions Private Limited Associate Para 3(iii), 3 (xviii)

For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 103592W/W100028

Digitally signed
HaSmUkh by Hasmukh

Nanji Nanji Shah
Date: 2024.09.11
Shah 22:20:37 +05'30'

Hasmukh N. Shah

Partner

Membership No. 038407
UDIN: 24038407BKASVR4265
Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 September 2024



Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Trentar Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Act which
are its subsidiary companies, as of that date.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of report of the other auditors on internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of subsidiary companies incorporated in India as was
audited by the other auditor, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which
are its subsidiary companies, has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditor of the relevant subsidiary companies in terms of their report referred to in the Other Matter
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in so far as it
relates to 1 subsidiary company which is company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For Hasmukh Shah & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 103592W/W100028
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Hasmukh N. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 038407
UDIN: 24038407BKASVR4265
Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 September 2024



